
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
  1000 Commerce Drive 

     Marquette, Michigan 49855 
           Ph | 906.228.6220 

Fx | 906.228.7337 
www.marquettetownship.org 

 

MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP BOARD - REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 7, 2023 - 5:30 PM 

MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER 
  

      
 1. Call to order 
 A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 B.  Roll Call 
      
 2. Public Comment (3 minutes each)This Board is conducting a meeting today to take care of 

Township business. You are allowed to address the Board at least twice tonight, but we will not have 
back-and-forth conversations between the staff, the Board, and the public during Public Comment. For 
Public Comment, or if you would like to speak on a particular agenda item, state your name and 
address and you have three minutes to address the Board. The Board may, but is not required to, 
respond at Board Member Comment immediately following Public Comment. The Board may also 
request follow-up with the Township Manager on some matters addressed during Public Comment. 

      
 3. Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment 
      
 4. Consent Agenda 
 A.  Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 
 B.  Bills Payable in the amount of $184,424.19.  Checks 163527 to 163573.  Note 

any voided checks. 
 C.  Received Committee and Other Reports 
 1.  Fire Department Roster 5/9/23 
 2.  Sheriff's Department Activity Report - April 2023 
 D.  Correspondence not Requiring Board Action 
 1.  Letter from County Clerk Regarding Township Clerk's Increased Duties 
 2.  MCSWMA Director Austin Resignation 
 3.  MCSWMA Seasonal Hours Effective 12-1-23 
 4.  MCSWMA Holiday Hours 5-26-23 
 5.  MCSWMA Landfill Permit 5-26-23 
 6.  Peter White Public Library Board Draft Minutes from 5/23/23 
 E.  April 2023 Financial Statements 
      
 5. Approval of the Agenda (Declaration of Conflict of Interest, if any) 
      
 6. Board Education/Privileged Comment 
 A.  Library Report 

Page 1 of 134

http://www.marquettetownship.org/


 B.  MCSWMA 2023 Shareholder Meeting-Abbreviated 
      
 7. Community Linkage (primarily based on the Board’s Annual Plan of Work. Board member 

comment regarding what we are hearing from the external environment about township issues and 
activities.) 

      
 8. Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development 
 A.  Schedule a Work Session with Attorney to Discuss Investment Policy and 

Depository Resolution 
 B.  Consider Support for Fire Department EV Training 
 C.  Consider Contribution to Housing Intergovernmental Task Force (abbreviated 

proposal) 
 D.  Consider Early Payoff of Township Debt - North Parking Lot at Township Hall 

and Grove Street Land 
 E.  Consider Purchase of a 2023 Tahoe 4WD w/Police Package for MCSO - per 

Contract 
 F.  Consider Recommendation of Roads Committee for 2023 Road Maintenance 

Projects 
 G.  Consider Renewal of MTA Membership 
 H.  Consider Installation of Solar Array at Township Hall 
      
 9. Assurance of Organizational Performance 
 A.  Board - Committee Updates 
 1.  Roads Committee 
 2.  Planning Report 
 3.  Community Day Events Committee 
      
 10. Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum) 
      
 11. Meeting Wrap-up 
 A.  Announcements 
 B.  Manager’s Report 
 C.  Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any 
 D.  Items for Future Agenda  
 E.  Board Member Comment  
      
 12. Adjournment  
  
Next Scheduled Meeting Date is June 17, 2023 at 5:30PM. 
 

Page 2 of 134



1

MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP BOARD
MINUTES

WEDNESDAY, MAY 17, 2023 - 5:30 PM
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER

 
Call to order:
Supervisor Durant called the Meeting to Order at 5:30PM.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call
Members present:       Lyn Durant, Supervisor
                                    Randy Ritari, Clerk
                                    Ernest Johnson, Treasurer
                                    Linda Winslow, Trustee
                                    Dan Everson, Trustee
                                    John Markes, Trustee
                                    Karl Kytta, Trustee
 
Staff present:               Jon Kangas, Township Manager
                                    Roger Zappa, Township Attorney
                                    Lenny Bodenus, Township Superintendent of Public Works (Teleconference)
                                    Jason McCarthy, Township Planner/Zoning Administrator (Teleconference) 
                                    Dan Shanahan, Township Fire Chief/EMT
                                    Lauren Zybert, Township Fire Fighter/EMT

Committee Members
Present:                       None

Public Comment (3 minutes each):
Supervisor Durant, read a letter into the record from Sally Olsen, 134 S. Vandenboom Rd. in regards to 
water issues in her yard from poor drainage.

Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment:
Various Board Discussion about Drainage Issues in the Township.

Consent Agenda:

Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of May 3, 2023.

Page 3 of 134



2

Bills Payable in the amount of $166,055.95.  Check's 163458 to 163524.  Note any voided checks.

Received Committee and Other Reports

Treasurer's Report March 2023

Election Statistics 1990- Present

Correspondence not Requiring Board Action

MCSWMA 5/17/23 Abbreviated Board Packet

MOTION:  To approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Motion – Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Kytta
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Approval of the Agenda:
Supervisor Durant would like to add to the Regular Agenda 8.I Consider Local Governing Body 
Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses.

MOTION:  To approve the Regular Agenda as amended.
Motion – Trustee Kytta
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Board Education/Privileged Comment:

Fire Department Report
Chief Shanahan, presented his report.

Public Works Report
Superintendent Bodenus, presented his report.

Attorney Report 
Attorney Zappa, presented his report.

Planning Report

Page 4 of 134



3

Planner McCarthy, presented his report.

Community Linkage :

Discuss options for Northiron Serve Day 6/4/23
Supervisor Durant, was still looking for ideas for North-Iron Church Serve day in the Township.

Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development:

Consider BLP Utility Easement
(Background from Superintendent Bodenus)

MOTION:  To grant the easement to Marquette Board of Light and Power as presented based on 
review and approval of our attorney.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Consider agreement with Marquette Senior High School for use of Lions Field.
(Background from Superintendent Bodenus)

MOTION:  To approve the new agreement with MSHS Softball for use of the Marquette Township 
Lions Field as discussed by the board and reviewed and approved by the township attorney and 
authorize the Township Supervisor to sign the agreement.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Consider Investment Policy
(Background from Treasurer Johnson)

MOTION:  To move Agenda Item 8.C. Consider Investment Policy, and 8.D. Consider the 
Township Investment and Depository Designation Resolution, and schedule a work session at the 
next regular board meeting to discuss these items at a future meeting.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                   Carried (7-0)

Consider the Township Investment and Depository Designation Resolution
Moved to a future board agenda.

Page 5 of 134



4

Consider Letter of Support for Republic Township
(Background from Supervisor Durant)

No action taken, just referred to the Marquette County Township Association for discussion.

Consider Scheduling a Work Session with Rep Jenn Hill on Tuesday, June 6 at 6:00 p.m. to Discuss 
Township Issues
(Background from Supervisor Durant)

MOTION:  To schedule a work session with Representative Jenn Hill on Tuesday, June 6th at 
6:00PM to discuss various township issues.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Winslow
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Consider DDA Priority Project Plan Amendment
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  To adopt the DDA Project Priorities as amended.
Motion – Trustee Markes
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Consider Wade Trim Progress Payment
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  To approve the progress invoice from Wade Trim in the amount of $460.50.
Motion – Trustee Markes
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Consider Local Governing Body Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses 
(Background from Supervisor Durant)

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses for the Marquette 
Township Business Association.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye

Page 6 of 134



5

                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Aye            
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Assurance of Organizational Performance:

Board - Committee Updates

Recreation Committee
Planner McCarthy covered earlier in the meeting with his Planner Report.

Planning Commission
Planner McCarthy covered earlier in the meeting with his Planner Report

Events Committee
Trustee Winslow, commented about the upcoming Community Day on August 5, 2023 at the Township 
Lions Field.

Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum):
None

Meeting Wrap-up:

Announcements
Clerk Ritari, gave some election information for the future.

Manager’s Report
Manager Kangas, presented his written report.

Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any
Clerk Ritari, reviewed all motions from the meeting and any action items that needed to be done.

Items for Future Agenda 
Solid Waste information, and Work Session for Investment Policy and Resolution.

Board Member Comment 
Supervisor Durant, got her recycle card information from 906 recycle in the mail.

Page 7 of 134



6

Trustee Winslow, we should find the money and send our firefighters to the electric car fire training 
workshop. 

Adjournment:
MOTION:  To Adjourn the meeting.
Motion - Trustee Everson
Second – Clerk Ritari   
                                                                                    Carried (7-0)

Supervisor Durant adjourned the meeting at 7:39PM.

______________________________ _______________________________
Randy J. Ritari, Township Clerk   Lyn J. Durant, Township Supervisor 

Page 8 of 134



Page 9 of 134



Page 10 of 134



Page 11 of 134



Page 12 of 134



Page 13 of 134



Page 14 of 134



Page 15 of 134



Page 16 of 134



Page 17 of 134



Page 18 of 134



Page 19 of 134



Page 20 of 134



Page 21 of 134



Page 22 of 134



Page 23 of 134



Page 24 of 134



Page 25 of 134



Page 26 of 134



Page 27 of 134



Page 28 of 134



5/26/2023 
 

2023 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

MARQUETTE COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 

JANUARY 2, 2023 

 

NEW YEAR’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

FEBRUARY 20, 2023 PRESIDENT’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

APRIL 7, 2023  

 

GOOD FRIDAY OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

MAY 29, 2023   

 

MEMORIAL DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

JULY 4, 2023 

 

INDEPENDENCE DAY 

(Tuesday) 

CLOSED 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2023 

 

LABOR DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 10, 2023 VETERANS DAY 

(Friday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 23, 2023  

 

THANKSGIVING DAY 

(Thursday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 24, 2023 

 

DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING 

(Friday) 

OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

DECEMBER 22, 2023  

 

CHRISTMAS EVE 

(Friday) 

OPEN 7 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

DECEMBER 25, 2023  

 

CHRISTMAS DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

DECEMBER 29, 2023  

 

NEW YEAR’S EVE 

(Friday) 

OPEN 7 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

JANUARY 1, 2024 

 

NEW YEAR’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

 

*NOTE: WHEN A HOLIDAY FALLS ON SATURDAY, THE DAY IS OBSERVED ON FRIDAY; 

WHEN A HOLIDAY FALLS ON SUNDAY, IT IS OBSERVED ON MONDAY 
 

 
 
 

Page 29 of 134



5/26/2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

TO: Marquette County Solid Waste Management Authority 

FROM:  

DATE:  

RE: Authorized Hauler Agreement  Temporary __________  Permanent __________ 
 

This is to inform you the following named company / individual is authorized to dispose of refuse at the landfill: 

Dates Authorized: 
 

Hauler’s Name (Printed): 
 

Hauler’s Address: 
 

Hauler’s Phone Number: 
 

E-mail Address: 
 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL - GUIDELINES FOR WASTE DISPOSAL 
Landfill hours are: 

April 1 – November 30 - 6:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday 

December 1 – March 31 - 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Monday through Friday  
 

ALL WASTE MUST BE GENERATED FROM MARQUETTE COUNTY ONLY 
FOLLOW ALL SIGNS AND INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN BY LANDFILL EMPLOYEES 

 

ALL LOADS MUST BE TARPED. NO EXCEPTIONS. 

Tarps prevent debris from blowing out of the loads prior to arriving in the 
dumping area.  Loads will be turned away at the scale if it is not tarped. 
Leave your load tarped until you arrive at the designated dump site. 
 

Upon Arrival: 
Stop COMPLETELY before SLOWLY driving onto the scale. Wait until the 
vehicle in front of you is completely off of the scale. 
 

PARK vehicle on scale. Make sure vehicle is within the scale boundaries. 
This includes your truck and trailer. LEAVE vehicle on scale. Go into the 
office to give your information to the scale operator.  
 

Stay in line! Dump in the order that you came across the scale; do not cut 
in front of trucks that are waiting to dump. Stay in your vehicle while 
waiting to dump. Dump between the “X” signs, not on the “X” signs. 
Charges will be assessed to loads dumped in the wrong locations. 
 

Come back on to the scale after dumping or you will be charged the 
entire weight of your truck and trailer. 

  Safety Reminders:    

 SPEED LIMIT ON THE MCSWMA PROPERTY is 15 MPH 
  NO SMOKING is permitted on MCSWMA property 
               LEAVE CHILDREN AND PETS AT HOME FOR THEIR SAFETY 

NO OPEN TOE OR DRESS SHOES, STEEL-TOE BOOTS 
recommended 
STAY AWAY from all equipment…Do not walk or drive near 
equipment. Do not pass landfill equipment on Authority 
property. Landfill equipment has the right of way.  
STAY OUT of trash/waste for your safety – NO SCAVENGING IS 
ALLOWED. 

               LEAVE ANIMALS (birds) alone. 
 

The Following Waste is Prohibited in the Landfill: 
Tires-see schedule of fees  

 

Yard/Compost Waste-see schedule of fees 
Refrigerant Devices-see schedule of fees 

                                 For more information about prohibited waste see the Schedule 

               of Fees.
 

I have read and agree to follow the Marquette County Landfill Guidelines for Waste Disposal.  I also understand failure to do so may 

result in revoking of dumping privileges and/or additional charges for which I will be responsible. I also understand that the tipping 

fee for this disposal will be billed to the Municipality and the Municipality will bill the above authorized hauler directly. Tipping fees 

will be paid promptly upon receipt of billing from the Municipality.  I also understand that failure to pay for such fees will result in 

suspension of landfill privileges and may initiate other actions as deemed necessary by the Municipality Board to recover unpaid 

amounts.  
 

Authorized Hauler’s Signature ________________________________________________________ Date ______________________ 
 

 

Authorized Municipal Official’s Signature _________________________________________________Date _____________________ 

Page 30 of 134



1 
 

Board of Trustees of the Peter White Public Library 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes 
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Peter White Public Library was held on 
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 in the George Shiras III Room of the Peter White Public Library.  The 
meeting was called to order by President Anne Donohue at 5:02PM. 
 
Members Present: Anne Donohue, President; Suzanne Williams, Member; Carol 
Steinhuas, Member; Lori Nelson, Member.  Excused:  Steve Schmunk, Secretary. 
 
Library Staff Present: Andrea Ingmire, Library Director; Bruce MacDonald, Assistant 
Director/IT Head; Heather Steltenpohl, Development Director; Ann Richmond Garrett, 
Administrative Assistant; Jamie Goodwin, Finance Director; Sarah Rehborg, Youth Services 
Department Head; Amy Salminen, Adult Services Department Head.  
 
TAC Representatives Present: Peggy Jensen, West Branch Township. 
 
Others present (online):  Members of the public. 
 
The Agenda was approved on a motion by Steinhaus and seconded by Nelson.  The motion is 
approved 4-0.  
 
The Minutes of the April 18, 2023 Board Meeting were approved on a motion by Steinhaus 
and seconded by Williams.  The motion is approved 4-0. 
 
Election of Officers:  Anne Donohue presented a slate of Board Members, Steve Schmunk to 
remain as Secretary, and Anne Donohue as president. Donohue called for any members to 
volunteer for these positions if interested, none came forward. The election of officers was 
approved on a motion by Nelson and seconded by Steinhaus. The motion is approved 4-0. 
 
Special Presentation – Amy Salminen, Adult Services.  Salminen gave a presentation on 
services (both online and in person) offered by the Reference Desk. She also spoke about job 
duties of the Reference Desk employees, and the duties of the Adult Services Librarian. 
 
TAC Report:  Peggy Jensen, West Branch Township.  West Branch is in the process of 
updating their community master plan; an open meeting was held on 5-22-2023 to discuss 
land use. 
 
Financial Reports – including Approval of the Bills:  Goodwin addressed questions and 
comments related to the bills and financial reports.  The budget hearing with the city is 
upcoming in July.  Williams addressed a date typo in the Carroll Paul Trust Fund section, 
Goodwin will correct.  A motion was brought by Steinhaus and seconded by Nelson to approve 
the bills for April 2023, in the amount of $208,220.98.  The motion is approved 4-0.   
 
Public Comment:  
-Christie Wagner spoke in favor of keeping This Book Is Gay in our collection. 
-Joe Lavey spoke about censorship and free speech.   

Page 31 of 134



2 
 

-Linda Byers-Blaksmith spoke about censorship and the individual’s right for access to 
information, and retaining the book in the section. 
-P. David Allen spoke in opposition of book banning.   
-Priscilla Burnham presented a statement on behalf of Marquette County League of Women 
Voters, State League on the duties of libraries and access to information. 
-Lilith Muraro spoke on the educational merits of This Book is Gay.   
-Sarah Santiago spoke in opposition of book banning and the right to access information. 
-A community member spoke in support of the library and intellectual freedom. 
-Maria Gunson spoke about the importance of access to sex education. 
-Sophie Riley presented statistics on mental health and queer youth, in favor of keeping This 
Book is Gay in the collection.   
-Missy Seamen spoke about the importance of youth access to library programs and books 
that represent them. 
-Rose Sterna spoke in opposition to banning This Book is Gay.   
-Samantha Elder spoke in opposition to banning This Book is Gay. 
-Joe Meyskens spoke about protecting democracy and the importance of the freedom to share 
ideas. 
-Hannah Harriman, a nurse in Family Planning, spoke on the value of sex education. 
-Miranda Miller spoke about the importance of building inclusive classrooms and 
representation, for students. 
-Peter Zenti shared their story and shared pieces from The Principal’s Desk, in opposition of 
removing This Book is Gay. 
-Joanna Worley spoke about the importance of retaining literature of all kinds in library 
collections. 
-Mary Schneeberger, a past Teen Services Coordinator, spoke about the personal value of 
being open to literature of all kinds.  
-Savannah Struble spoke in opposition of banning This Book is Gay. 
-Hava Thiele spoke in opposition of banning This Book is Gay. 
-Donavon Young spoke in opposition of banning This Book is Gay or any other book. 
-Sunny spoke in to the value of sex education for young people, in opposition of banning This 
Book is Gay. 
-Holly Stark spoke in opposition of book banning and its effect on culture.  
-Anne Stark spoke in support of those who stand in opposition to banning This Book is Gay.   
-Kelly Sassi provided print copies of the Statement on Academic Freedom, for Board 
Members, from the National Council of Teachers of English. 
-Kristy Green shared a story on behalf of a friend that spoke to the importance of access to 
queer literature for youth. 
-Astor Michelsen spoke on the importance of libraries as safe spaces for young people. 
-Tammy Wills spoke to the importance of an inclusive society. 
-Melinda Britton shared her personal story and in spoke in opposition of banning This Book is 
Gay. 
-Jaime Vanenkevort spoke in support of those in opposition of banning This Book is Gay. 
-Jon Barch directly addressed the statements made by the individual making the Request for 
Reconsideration.   
-Jeaneen Rastall spoke to the importance of access to information for parents of queer youth. 
-A community member spoke to the importance of sex education for LGBTQ youth and in 
opposition to banning This Book is Gay. 
-Bob Mann spoke in opposition of banning any book, regardless of personal political beliefs. 
 
 

Page 32 of 134



3 
 

 
Board Action Items: 
 

a) Request for Reconsideration- “This Book is Gay” by Juno Dawson.  
Ingmire reviewed timeline of current request.  A statement was read on behalf of Steve 
Schmunk, in opposition of removing This Book is Gay. Anne Donohue shared her 
experiences with censorship, and in opposition of restricting or removing access to any 
type of literature. Carol Steinhaus spoke in opposition of banning any book, the 
importance of freedom of speech, and the duty of the Board to represent the wishes of 
the community. Suzanne Williams thanked the public for sharing their comments, in 
opposition of banning the book, and in putting decisions involving books in the hands of 
the library staff. Lori Nelson thanked the public for sharing their comments, and spoke in 
opposition of banning any book. On a motion by Nelson and seconded by Steinhaus.  
The Board of Trustees of the Peter White Public Library moves to uphold the 
decision of the Request for Reconsideration Committee and retain the item, “This 
Book is Gay” by Juno Dawson. The motion is approved 4-0. 

b) Amended Budget – a typo was included in the last budget, an Amended Budget has 
been presented. On a motion by Nelson and seconded by Steinhaus, The Board of 
Trustees of the Peter White Public Library moves to approve the FY22- 

  23 Budget Adjustments as presented. The motion is approved 4-0. 
c) Policies for Approval – the Remote Work Policy has been set apart from the retired 

pandemic related policies, and the Emergency Response Policy has been reworded 
and clarified. On a motion by Steinhaus and seconded by Williams.  The Board of 
Trustees of the Peter White Public Library moves to approve the GOV –9 Remote 
Work Policy and GOV – 8 Emergency Response Policy as presented. These 
policies will become effective on 5/23/2023. The motion is approved 4-0. 

d) Policy for Review – CIRC-1 Library Card Policy has been updated to meet the 
needs of guardians who cannot be present when a minor needs to obtain a library 
card, while also verifying identity of the individual signing up for the card. First reading, 
no action necessary. 

 
Other Business:   

None 
 
Board Member Comment: 

a) Trustee Manual:  Review of Chapter 9, 2021 Edition. 
b) Board Members reviewed public comment on the Request for Reconsideration 

 
Standing Reports:  Bruce MacDonald wrote a letter of support for the UPLink project. 
Nelson requested clarification of aforementioned other books that have been questioned as to 
their purpose in our collection. 
 
Adjournment: Steinhaus made motion to adjourn, seconded by Nelson.  The motion was 
approved 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:00PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Steve Schmunk 

Page 33 of 134



4 
 

Secretary  
 
Upcoming meetings:  June 20, 2023 
Upcoming TAC meeting:  June 7, 2023 
 

Page 34 of 134



Page 35 of 134



Page 36 of 134



Page 37 of 134



Page 38 of 134



Page 39 of 134



Page 40 of 134



Page 41 of 134



Page 42 of 134



Page 43 of 134



Page 44 of 134



Page 45 of 134



Page 46 of 134



Page 47 of 134



Page 48 of 134



Page 49 of 134



Page 50 of 134



Page 51 of 134



Page 52 of 134



Page 53 of 134



Page 54 of 134



Page 55 of 134



Page 56 of 134



Page 57 of 134



Page 58 of 134



Page 59 of 134



Page 60 of 134



MCSWMA 
Annual 
Meeting 

April 19, 2023

Page 61 of 134



FY 2021-2022 TONNAGE BY MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 62 of 134



• TIPPING FEE FY 2021-
2022

Tipping Fee Components Budget Cost/ 
Ton

Net Operating Expenses $3,015,502 $48.25

Host Community Fee $60,010 $1.00

Environmental Escrow 
Fund

$15,003 $0.25

**Perpetual Care Fund $120,020 $2.00

MRF-CLF FUNDING $360,060 $6.00

Construction 10-year Plan $210,035 $3.50

HHW ALLOCATION $30,005 $0.50

Total: $3,810,635 $61.50

Page 63 of 134



LOCATION COST PER TON
2022

COST PER TON/LBS 
2023

OWNERSHIP

MENOMINEE $84.25
Includes environmental & 

fuel charge

$150.00
Includes environmental & 

fuel charge

WASTE MANAGEMENT

K&W 
ONTONAGON

$50.40/per 200 lbs. $55.00
Up to 280 lbs.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

WOOD ISLAND $90.00 $90.00 GREEN FOR LIFE

HIAWATHA 
SHORES

$200.00 $200.00 HIAWATHA SHORES

DAFTER $125.00
Includes environmental & 

fuel charge

$125.00
Includes environmental & 

fuel charge

WASTE MANAGEMENT

DELTA CO. $66.50 $66.25 MUNICIPALITIES OF 
DELTA COUNTY

MARQUETTE
COUNTY 
LANDFILL

$63.50 $68.00
MUNICIPALITIES OF

MARQUETTE COUNTY

TIPPING FEE COMPARISON 

Page 64 of 134



• AUTHORITY FUND 
BALANCES YEAR END 

FY 2021 and 2022

Fund December 2021
Balance

December 2022
Balance

Construction Sinking Included in capital outlay Included in capital 
outlay

General Cash Account $824,435 $323,522

Equipment Replacement Included in capital outlay Included in capital 
outlay

Contaminated Soil $0 $0

*Perpetual Care $3,283,083 $3.318,416

Environmental Escrow $657,905 $663,179

Household Hazardous Waste $40,000 $40,000

Capital Outlay $1,376,128 $1,379,793

Sick Accrual $0 $0

Host Community $65,791 $60,976

Payroll Checking Account $4,665 $244

Petty Cash $200 $200

Recycling (infrastructure) $75,000 $75,000

Total: $6,327,207 $5,861,330

Page 65 of 134



HHW 
COLLECTED 

DURING 
2021-2022

Item 2021 Collection 2022 Collection

General HHW 17,302 Pounds 20,858 Pounds

Car Batteries 122 each 100 each

Motor Oil 3,375 gallons 2,325 gallons

Antifreeze 700 gallons 300 gallons

Oil Filters 600 pounds 300 pounds

Mercury 4.10 pounds .89 pounds

Pesticides 2,534.2 pounds 2,607.2 pounds

Fluorescent Bulbs 7,300 each 4,782 each

HHW Deliveries at 
Collections

800 788

HHW Deliveries by 
Appointment at Landfill

N/A 159

Page 66 of 134



Page 67 of 134



Landfill Leachate

Page 68 of 134



Leachate Data

9,793,000 gallons 
treated and 

discharge in 2022

No leachate 
transferred off site 

in 2022

Page 69 of 134



Single Stream 
Recycling 

• 8,400 tons received
• 50% out of county sources
• Strong markets Q1 through Q3
• 60%-70% drop in values 

starting in Q4 2022

Page 70 of 134



2021-2022 Commodity Markets
3 Year Value Snapshot 

Commodity 2020/per ton 
value

2021/per 
ton value

2022/per ton 
value 

MCSWMA

Today

Cardboard $60 $171 $150 $37.50

Mixed Paper $18 $96 $85 $8.50

HDPE 
plastics

$1,100 $2,169 $940 $1,580

PET Plastics $130 $511 $700 $300

Steel Cans $78 $250 $540 $280

Page 71 of 134



Page 72 of 134



Landfill 
Operations

• Health, safety and 
accessibility

• Waste placement and 
leachate management

• Regulatory compliance
• Challenges and hazards

Page 73 of 134



Challenges and 
Continued 
Education

• Lithium-ion batteries 
• Medical waste

Page 74 of 134



Recycling 
Operations

•

•

•
•
•

Page 75 of 134



Page 76 of 134



Challenges & 
Continued 
Education

• Organics or food waste 
• Needles / sharps

• Lithium-ion batteries

Page 77 of 134



Page 78 of 134



Page 79 of 134



2023 Financial 
Projections

• $4.50 per ton increase of MCSWMA Tipping 
Fees/reviewed annually by MCSWMA Board

• Tipping Fee increase to be allocated between 
Perpetual Care/MCSWMA Long term Capital 
Investments or Operations.

• Monitoring market conditions in affiliation 
with the MRF and its product placement.

EXPENDITURES TO EVALUATE FOR TIPPING FEE

• State of Michigan Financial Assurance Post Closure 
Rate

• Fuel/Inflation increase in everyday materials used for 
operations

• Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facility
• State of Michigan Budget Restrictions – Lack of Grant 

Funding (WWTP grant)
• Regulatory compliance

Page 80 of 134



Page 81 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.B.  
Proposal: Consider financial support for Fire 

Department EV training  
Presented by: Linda Winslow and Supervisor Lyn Durant  

 
 
Background: 
The Township Fire Department submitted a grant request to cover the electronic vehicle 
training for 16 of their members but the grant failed. At the 5/17/23 Township Board 
meeting, Trustee Winslow suggested that the Township Board consider covering the 
expense. With more, and varied, electric vehicles entering the community every day, she 
feels it is important that we not wait for the Fire Department to try the grant request 
again. If, at some point, the Chief is able to apply for another grant, perhaps the Board 
could be reimbursed for some or all of the funds.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ $5,500 
  
Budget Account: TBD  
   
Recommended motion: 
Direct the Township Fire Chief to schedule EV training for 16 of the members and have 
Manager Kangas pay the invoice from a Township Board account (to be determined).  
 

Page 82 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.C.  
Proposal: Consider a Contribution to the Housing 

Intergovernmental Task Force for 
Residential Target Market Analysis  

Presented by: Supervisor Lyn Durant  
 

 
Background: 
Various organizations and municipalities have formed a task force to address housing 
issues in the county and have been meeting for about a year. P&Z Administrator 
McCarthy has been attending the meetings by board direction. In anticipation of securing 
a Target Market Analysis (TMA), the group is requesting funding to support this cause 
and has already accumulated nearly $70,000 toward that end (list attached). The Task 
Force met this past Monday, and they are looking for our financial participation.  
 
Attachments: 1. TMA Proposal 5-9-23 abbreviated 

2. TMA Match Funding Sources 
  
Cost: $ To be determined 
  
Budget Account: To be determined  
   
Recommended motion: 
To be determined  
 

Page 83 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 84 of 134



Page 85 of 134



Page 86 of 134



Page 87 of 134



Page 88 of 134



Page 89 of 134



Page 90 of 134



Page 91 of 134



Page 92 of 134



Page 93 of 134



Municipality Status Amount

City of Marquette Confirmed $5,000.00

Marquette County LBA Confirmed $5,000.00

City of Ishpeming Confirmed $2,500.00

Chocolay Township Tentative up to 3500

Forsyth Township Confirmed $3,000.00

City of Negaunee Tentative ~5000

Community Foundation of Marquette Confirmed $5,000.00

DTE Foundation Confirmed $1,000.00

MDARD GRANT $50,000.00

TOTAL  CONFIRMED $71,500.00

Residential Target Market Analysis Contributions 5/9/23

Page 94 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.D.  
Proposal: Consider Early Payoff of Township Debt  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
In previous budget work sessions, members of the current and past Township Boards 
have expressed the desire to take a "debt snowball" approach to Township debt.  As 
staff reviewed the most recent draft audit, we were reminded of the Board's desires 
(highlighted excerpt attached).  As a result, we looked at the loans with the smallest 
remaining balances, compared them to existing fund balances, and prepared this 
recommendation for early payoffs.  Kudos to our Accountant, Kim Clark for her 
assistance in gathering the attached documentation. 
 
Payoff amounts (valid through 6/8/2023): 
Grove Street vacant land (well road) - $52,904.79*.  Savings will be approximately 6-7 
months of interest at 3.25% (~$900). 
 
Township Hall Parking Lot - $124,844.45*.  Savings will be approximately 9.5 years of 
interest at 3.15% (~$19,000). 
 
*Per the attached documents, early payment penalties are waived on both loans. 
 
As of the end of April, the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was: 
$3,179,532.  After the proposed payments, the unassigned balance would have 
approximately 14 months of equivalent operating funds available with approximately 8 
months of the year remaining. 
 
Additional early debt payments will be presented during the 2024 budget process.  
 
Attachments: 1. draft audit table 

2. grove st land payoff 
3. township hall parking lot payoff 

  
Cost: $ 177,749.24 
  
Budget Account: GF Fund Balance (A subsequent budget amendment will 

be required.)  
   

Page 95 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Recommended motion: 
Authorize staff to make the early payments to extinguish the debt on the vacant Grove 
Street land and the Township Hall parking lot in the amounts of $52,904.79 and 
$124,844.45, respectively.  
 

Page 96 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 97 of 134



Page 98 of 134



Page 99 of 134



Page 100 of 134



Page 101 of 134



Page 102 of 134



Page 103 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.E.  
Proposal: Purchase 2023 Tahoe for MCSO  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
The 2023 budget includes the purchase of a new patrol vehicle for MCSO to conduct 
their contracted patrols in the Township.  Prior discussions at the Board level concluded 
that our next vehicle would be a white full-size SUV, which is primarily limited to the 
Chevy Tahoe when a police package is required.  The MiDeal dealer (Berger Chevrolet 
Inc. of Grand Rapids) has 2023 models in their inventory.  MCSO has reserved one of 
those inventory vehicles for Marquette Township's new patrol vehicle.  When purchasing 
through MiDeals, the state has already completed the bidding for us.  We are a member 
of MiDeals, as is Marquette County. 
 
The CIP currently has approximately $67,000 available for this purchase ($52,103 of 
prior allocations plus $15,000 budgeted this fiscal year) with the purchase planned for 
this year.  Allowing the local dealer to bid on this vehicle was part of our plan, but they 
are unable to access 2023 model-year vehicles. 
 
The MiDeal purchase price will be $40,577 including title fee (titled to MCSO) and 
delivery costs.  Additional equipment and setup will occur after MCSO receives the 
vehicle, estimated at $15,000+/-. 
 
Vehicle rights will follow the terms of our contract with MCSO.  
 
Attachments: 1. Marquette County Tahoe price 
  
Cost: $ 40,577 
  
Budget Account: GF Capital - Police Vehicle  
   
Recommended motion: 
Authorize the purchase of a 2023 Chevy Tahoe with police package from Berger 
Chevrolet Inc. of Grand Rapids for the MiDeal purchase price of $40,577 and authorize 
MCSO/Berger to invoice Marquette Township for the amount indicated.  
 

Page 104 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Cost per vehicle   $40,577.00 Vehicle Description:

 Year  2023
Number of units 1

Make Chevrolet

Total Bid Amount $40,577.00 Model Tahoe 4wd
police package

Vendor: Bid Prepared For :
Berger Chevrolet Inc.

Marquette County
Address 2525 28th Street S.E.

Grand Rapids, MI   49512

Phone  (616) 949-5200

Fax      (616) 988-9178

Signature         Robert Evans             

Printed Signature _Robert M. Evans____
Date 5/25/2023

Vehicle number  

 BID PER ENCLOSED SPECIFICATIONS

Price includes title fee and delivery. Price based on 
Municipal discount for the State of Michigan..                                                                                                    

Page 105 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.F.  
Proposal: Consider Recommendation of Roads 

Committee for 2023 Maintenance Projects  
Presented by: Jon Kangas/Erik Powers  

 
 
Background: 
Overband crack filling for five Township roads was bid by MCRC.  The Roads 
Committee will review the bid results at their June 6th meeting.  Their recommendation 
will be provided to you at your meeting on the 7th.  It is important to note that bid prices 
are significantly higher than the estimated cost.  
 
Attachments: 1. 2023 road maintenance bids 
  
Cost: $ 25562 
  
Budget Account: Public Improvements - Roads  
   
Recommended motion: 
Accept the recommendation of the Roads Committee.  
 

Page 106 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 107 of 134



Page 108 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.G.  
Proposal: Consider MTA Annual Dues  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
MTA follows the state fiscal year of July 1 - June 30.  Our 2023-2024 annual dues total 
$5,313.06 without a contribution to the Legal Defense Fund or the Premium Pass. 
 During COVID, we started purchasing the Premium Pass, but we aren't certain that we 
have recognized the benefit we had anticipated in this "all-inclusive" training platform.  In 
addition, most training sessions have returned to in-person sessions.   
 
While there has been debate in the past regarding the Legal Defense Fund contribution, 
we believe this relatively low cost comes at great value to all Townships.  
 
Attachments: 1. 2023-2024 annual dues MTA 
  
Cost: $ 5472.45 
  
Budget Account: GF - Subscriptions and Dues  
   
Recommended motion: 
Renew the 2023-2024 MTA membership with the Legal Defense Fund contribution, but 
without the Premium Pass for a total cost to the Township of $5,472.45.  
 

Page 109 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 110 of 134



Page 111 of 134



Page 112 of 134



Page 113 of 134



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
  

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 
 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: June 7, 2023  
Agenda Item #: 8.H.  
Proposal: Consider Free-standing Solar Array at 

Township Hall  
Presented by: Jon Kangas  

 
 
Background: 
The 2022 Inflation Reduction Act allows municipalities to take a 30% direct payment for 
the installation of a solar system.  Having discussed the options extensively with 
Negaunee Township, we requested a "design-build" proposal from Peninsula Solar for 
two options: roof-top and free-standing.  A roof-top option will be more affordable initially, 
but presents issues when it comes time to replace the roof.  Peninsula Solar suggests 
the age of our roof is at the age limit for installing roof-top options.  A free-standing 
option allows the use of a dual-sided panel which allows for a 20% increase in energy 
generation in the winter due to the sun reflecting off the snow.  Additionally, a free-
standing option only causes concerns for snow storage and lawn maintenance.  A site 
plan will need to be reviewed for compliance with restrictive covenants for a free-
standing option.  That said, staff has initiated the conversation with the Cornerstone 
group and it appears that this option will be feasible.  While the return on investment is 
shorter for a roof-top option, we believe the racking system will far outlast the 25-year 
panel life and will be reusable for multiple generations of panels in the future.  This 
means we won't pay for a rack system every time panels need replacement.  
 
Attachments: 1. 30% Tax Credit Flyer 

2. Marquette Township -19.6kW ground- Proposal 
3. Marquette Township -20.28kW Roof- Proposal 
4. Ground Mount Marquette Township Payback 

Analysis 
5. Roof Marquette Township Payback Analysis 

  
Cost: $ 72465.00 
  
Budget Account: GF Fund Balance (all future energy savings and the 30% 

direct payment will be recognized in the GF)  
   
Recommended motion: 
Award the design-build cost proposal to Peninsula Solar in the amount of $72,465.00 for 
a free-standing solar system at Township Hall.  
 

Page 114 of 134

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


The In�ation Reduction Act Allows Tax Exempt Entities to 
Take a 30% Direct Payment for a Solar System

Negaunee Township Hall Solar System

Installed by Peninsula Solar, 2022

Tax exempt organizations now qualify for a 30% credit on a solar system, in the form of a 
direct payment.

You may have heard about the 2022 Inflation Reduction Act in the news. Perhaps you 

heard a bit about new incentives for solar installations. Amidst the commotion, some people 

missed the significance of this announcement. When you look at what is being o�ered, you'll 

see how staggering the opportunities a�orded in this unprecedented legislation are. Here's 

the rundown:

30% TAX CREDIT
FOR SOLAR

Virtually any property owner in the United States qualifies for a tax credit granting them 

30% o� of a solar system.

For homeowners and business owners, this credit comes in an o�set of their income tax 

liability.

Page 115 of 134



A modern solar energy system is by far the most cost e�ective way to provide power to a 

building, especially one that consumes a fair amount of energy. With solar energy, your 

organization can lock in its price for power, and save thousands of dollars per year.

Example

System cost x 30% = Direct Payment Amount

$45,000 x 30% = $13,500 Check

Peninsula Solar, based out of Marquette, is the only fully licensed solar installation 

company in the Upper Peninsula. We have been installing commercial-scale solar systems 

since 2011, and our design team will be happy to speak with you in order to develop a free 

proposal. So give us a call at 906-235-0340 and we'll gladly answer all of your questions.

"Peninsula Solar was knowledgeable and professional from initial project planning through 

system installation. Negaunee Township invested in this system as a long term benefit to our 

community and we are pleased with the results."

-Nick Leach, Township Manager, Negaunee Township (this quote is fake/filler)

About Us
Peninsula Solar is the only fully licensed solar installation company in the Upper Peninsula. 
Based out of Marquette, our team has been installing commercial-scale solar systems since 

2011.

www.peninsula-solar.com

906-235-0340

However, tax exempt organizations like yours have a unique advantage. For these 
organizations, the 30% credit now comes in the form of a direct payment.

CONTACT
PENINSULA  SOLAR
TO LEARN MORE

Page 116 of 134



Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground)

Submitted By:

Peninsula Solar, LLC
102 W. Washington St.

STE 220
Marquette MI 49855

ian@peninsula-solar.com
www.peninsula-solar.com

MI Residential Contractor Lic. #:  2103203492

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan ID#:  101068

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 1
Page 117 of 134



Peninsula Solar, LLC
102 W. Washington St.
STE 220
Marquette MI 49855
ian@peninsula-solar.com
www.peninsula-solar.com
MI Residential Contractor Lic. #:  2103203492

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan ID#:  101068

Proposal
Job Name Marquertte Township 

(19.6kW ground) 
Job Number 1677
Issue Date May 11, 2023
Valid Until June 10, 2023

Item Amount

Interconnection and/or Net Metering Agreement w/ Local Utility
Required completed interconnection and net metering agreement application w/ all required information, diagrams, and data sheets 
provided.

Commercial Permitting Application Fee
Commercial Fee for Local Permit Application 

P.E. Stamped Calculations and Drawings - Commercial
P.E. Stamped Loading Calculations and Permit Drawings for Commercial Solar Installation

(QTY. 40, 19.6 kW) Q CELLS — 480W Module
QCELL Q.PEAK DUO XL-G10.2 480W

PV Wire and Connectors
Solar PV Double Insulated #10AWG Conductors + Grounding EGC + Wire Connectors Per PV Module

Fronius Symo 10.0-3 208/240
10.0-3 208/240

20 Module, 3 Post Tundra HD Solar Ground Mount Racking w/ Adjustable Tilt
Tundra HD Racking, Fabricated in the Upper Peninsula 

18-22 Modules Per 3 Post Array, 4 Foot Snow Clearance

Includes:  Screw Adjuster Add-On, Iron Ridge XR1000 Aluminum Rails and Mounting Hardware, (3) 18” Ground Augured Holes w/ 
Bagged Concrete. Does not include topsoil/reseeding. 

Ground Mount System Installation Labor
Ground Mount System Labor Based on # of Modules Installed 

Electrical Labor - Commercial Grid Tied
Labor for AC electrical equipment installation for grid tied only projects. Does not include patching and drywall repair.

Electrical Materials - Commercial Grid Tied
Cost for electrical materials for integrating solar PV equipment into residential electrical system for projects that are grid tied without 
battery component.

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 2
Page 118 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

Item Amount

(120 LF) Electrical Feed to Ground Array
Electrical Feed to Array.  Buried Conductors in Conduit. Includes trench refill and leveling. Does not include seeding. 

Fuel and Transportation
Materials and Transportation Charge

System Safety and Labeling
NEC Code and Utility (If Applicable) Required System Saftey Labeling and Identification Equipment

Price $72,465.00

Terms

IMPORTANT:
Michigan Saves Loan Fee (2.5% of Total Price) Added to Proposal if a Customer Decides to Finance Through 

Michigan Saves.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  Module size and make subject to availability until 50% of contract amount 
is paid.  Any alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written 
orders by owners, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  Interest will be charged (not to exceed 
1.5% per month) on any invoice 30 days past due.  All agreements are contingent upon supplier availability, accidents, or 
delays beyond our control.

Down payment of 20% or over guarantees project contract and schedule. 
Price for materials and equipment is subject to change if supplier prices increase or decrease over 5% until 75% of 
contract amount is paid.  Upon payment of contract amount equal or over 75% prices are guaranteed.  Customer can 
elect to pay up to 75% down as a deposit to order materials at that time. 

Peninsula Solar Battery Cost Policy:
Peninsula Solar, as a continual promotion, does not mark up battery packs beyond 
the cost of the units from suppliers, shipping and tax. If the cost of the battery packs rise 
after the execution of the contract Peninsula Solar reserves the right to charge the difference. 
A change order will be provided to the customer. 

Warranty:
Panels, 25 yr. Typical per Manufacturer Specification
Inverter, 10 yr. Manufacturer Typical per Manufacturer Specification
Roof Racking, 25 yr; Ground Mounted, 5 yr. Manufacturer
P.S. Workmanship, 3 yr. 

Peninsula Solar requires all customer sites to have a reliable internet connection with consistent connections 
speeds of minimum 5mbps upload and 5 mbps download.  This is to allow remote battery and inverter maintenance, 
software updates, warranty and system monitoring.  If system diagnostics, maintenance, or updates need to be 
performed and internet communications to equipment is not available warranties may be voided and charges may be 
applied for in person based work.

Cash Purchase Payment Schedule (For Projects Under $50,000):
25%    Deposit (non-refundable, to secure position on schedule)
50%.   Upon Permit Approval
25%.   Balance Upon Physical Work Completion and System Testing

Generator Installation Subcontract Policy: 
Cash purchase payment schedule applies to contract 

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 3
Page 119 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

amount with exception of the line item amount for the generator material and 
installation. The portion of the contract involving generator(s) is separate with 
its own cash payment schedule. (due to a lack of product availability) 

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan:
Residential 4.44% APR (Typical),  Terms 10, 12, 15 or 25 years
Loan amounts from $1,000-$60,000  

 2.5% loan fee (financed amount)
Project costs greater than the financed amount subject to regular cash purchase 
payment schedule.
Peninsula Solar Contractor ID#: 101068
MI Saves Web:    https://michigansaves.org        MI Saves Phone:    517-484-6474

Date

Ian Olmsted
Peninsula Solar, LLC

Date

Ben Schimpf
Peninsula Solar, LLC

Date

Adrian Wojcik
Peninsula Solar, LLC

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 4
Page 120 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 5
Page 121 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 6
Page 122 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1677 - Marquertte Township (19.6kW ground) 7
Page 123 of 134



Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof)

Submitted By:

Peninsula Solar, LLC
102 W. Washington St.

STE 220
Marquette MI 49855

ian@peninsula-solar.com
www.peninsula-solar.com

MI Residential Contractor Lic. #:  2103203492

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan ID#:  101068

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 1
Page 124 of 134



Peninsula Solar, LLC
102 W. Washington St.
STE 220
Marquette MI 49855
ian@peninsula-solar.com
www.peninsula-solar.com
MI Residential Contractor Lic. #:  2103203492

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan ID#:  101068

Proposal
Job Name Marquette Township 

(20.28kW Roof) 
Job Number 1676
Issue Date May 11, 2023
Valid Until June 10, 2023

Item Amount

Interconnection and/or Net Metering Agreement w/ Marquette Board of Light and Power
Required completed interconnection and net metering agreement application w/ all required information, diagrams, and data sheets 
provided.

Commercial Permitting Application Fee
Commercial Fee for Local Permit Application 

P.E. Stamped Calculations and Drawings - Commercial
P.E. Stamped Loading Calculations and Permit Drawings for Commercial Solar Installation

(QTY. 52, 20.28kW) Jinko Eagle — 390W Module
JINKO JKM390M-72HBL-V, Black on Black Module. 25 Year Manufacturer Performance Warranty. 

APS RSD/D/15 Rapid Shutdown Device
AP Smart Systems Rapid Shutdown Device 

-National Electric Code Safety Requirement 

PV Wire and Connectors
Solar PV Double Insulated #10AWG Conductors + Grounding EGC + Wire Connectors Per PV Module

Fronius Symo 10.0-3 208/240
10.0-3 208/240

IronRidge XR100, Flush Mount Roof Racking and Sealed Roof Attachments
IronRidge XR100 Rails and Module Clamp Hardware w/ Grounding Lugs, Rooftec Sealed and Warrantied Roof Attachments on 4’ 
Rafter Centers, Priced Per Module

Rooftop System Installation Labor
 Roof Installation Price based on the Number of Modules, Roof Pitch, Building Height, and Attachment / Racking Type

Electrical Labor - Commercial Grid Tied
Labor for AC electrical equipment installation for grid tied only projects. Does not include patching and drywall repair.

Electrical Materials - Commercial Grid Tied
Cost for electrical materials for integrating solar PV equipment into residential electrical system for projects that are grid tied without 
battery component.

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 2
Page 125 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

Item Amount

(175 LF) Electrical Feed to Roof Array
Electrical Feed to Array.  Conductors in Conduit.  

Fuel and Transportation
Materials and Transportation Charge

System Safety and Labeling
NEC Code and Utility (If Applicable) Required System Saftey Labeling and Identification Equipment

Price $62,332.50

Terms

IMPORTANT:
Michigan Saves Loan Fee (2.5% of Total Price) Added to Proposal if a Customer Decides to Finance Through 

Michigan Saves.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  Module size and make subject to availability until 50% of contract amount 
is paid.  Any alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written 
orders by owners, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  Interest will be charged (not to exceed 
1.5% per month) on any invoice 30 days past due.  All agreements are contingent upon supplier availability, accidents, or 
delays beyond our control.

Down payment of 20% or over guarantees project contract and schedule. 
Price for materials and equipment is subject to change if supplier prices increase or decrease over 5% until 75% of 
contract amount is paid.  Upon payment of contract amount equal or over 75% prices are guaranteed.  Customer can 
elect to pay up to 75% down as a deposit to order materials at that time. 

Peninsula Solar Battery Cost Policy:
Peninsula Solar, as a continual promotion, does not mark up battery packs beyond 
the cost of the units from suppliers, shipping and tax. If the cost of the battery packs rise 
after the execution of the contract Peninsula Solar reserves the right to charge the difference. 
A change order will be provided to the customer. 

Warranty:
Panels, 25 yr. Typical per Manufacturer Specification
Inverter, 10 yr. Manufacturer Typical per Manufacturer Specification
Roof Racking, 25 yr; Ground Mounted, 5 yr. Manufacturer
P.S. Workmanship, 3 yr. 

Peninsula Solar requires all customer sites to have a reliable internet connection with consistent connections 
speeds of minimum 5mbps upload and 5 mbps download.  This is to allow remote battery and inverter maintenance, 
software updates, warranty and system monitoring.  If system diagnostics, maintenance, or updates need to be 
performed and internet communications to equipment is not available warranties may be voided and charges may be 
applied for in person based work.

Cash Purchase Payment Schedule (For Projects Under $50,000):
25%    Deposit (non-refundable, to secure position on schedule)
50%.   Upon Permit Approval
25%.   Balance Upon Physical Work Completion and System Testing

Generator Installation Subcontract Policy: 
Cash purchase payment schedule applies to contract 

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 3
Page 126 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

amount with exception of the line item amount for the generator material and 
installation. The portion of the contract involving generator(s) is separate with 
its own cash payment schedule. (due to a lack of product availability) 

Michigan Saves Home Energy Loan:
Residential 4.44% APR (Typical),  Terms 10, 12, 15 or 25 years
Loan amounts from $1,000-$60,000  

 2.5% loan fee (financed amount)
Project costs greater than the financed amount subject to regular cash purchase 
payment schedule.
Peninsula Solar Contractor ID#: 101068
MI Saves Web:    https://michigansaves.org        MI Saves Phone:    517-484-6474

Date

Ian Olmsted
Peninsula Solar, LLC

Date

Ben Schimpf
Peninsula Solar, LLC

Date

Adrian Wojcik
Peninsula Solar, LLC

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 4
Page 127 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 5
Page 128 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 6
Page 129 of 134



Proposal May 11, 2023

1676 - Marquette Township (20.28kW Roof) 7
Page 130 of 134



Marquette Township Solar System Analysis

System 
Performance 

System Size AC: 20 kW (2 x 10 kW Fronius Inverters)

System Size DC: 19.2 kW (40 panels x 480 watts)

System 
Productivity

Building 12 month historic energy usage: 55,719 kWh

*Aurora Generated Yearly System Output: 25,987 kWh 

*Aurora: an industry standard solar design software*

Value of Energy 
Produced 

Aurora Generated Yearly System Output: 25,987 kWh 

Lifetime Energy Production (25 years): 649,675 kWh

Cost of Energy Produced: $0.078 

(Cost of System after Tax Credit / Lifetime Energy Production)

System Payback

Value of yearly energy generated based on MBLP rates: $3,274

(Aurora Generated Yearly System Output x $0.126 MBLP Rate)

Estimated Payback Period after Tax Credit: 15.5 years (does not 
account for increase cost of energy)

Page 131 of 134



Page 132 of 134



Marquette Township Solar System Analysis

System 
Performance 

System Size AC: 20 kW (2 x 10 kW Fronius Inverters)

System Size DC: 20.28 kW (52 panels x 390 watts)

System 
Productivity

Building 12 month historic energy usage: 55,719 kWh

*Aurora Generated Yearly System Output: 26,311 kWh 

*Aurora: an industry standard solar design software*

Value of Energy 
Produced 

Aurora Generated Yearly System Output: 26,311 kWh

Lifetime Energy Production (25 years): 657,775 kWh

Cost of Energy Produced: $0.066 

(Cost of System after Tax Credit / Lifetime Energy Production)

System Payback

Value of yearly energy generated based on MBLP rates: $3,315

(Aurora Generated Yearly System Output x $0.126 MBLP Rate)

Estimated Payback Period after Tax Credit: 13.2 years (does not 
account for increase cost of energy)

Page 133 of 134



Page 134 of 134


	1. Call to order
	A. Pledge of Allegiance
	B. Roll Call

	2. Public Comment (3 minutes each)
	3. Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment
	4. Consent Agenda
	A. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of May 17, 202
	May 17 2023 Board Minutes

	B. Bills Payable in the amount of $184,424.19.  Check
	6-7-23

	C. Received Committee and Other Reports
	1. Fire Department Roster 5/9/23
	Roster 5-9-23

	2. Sheriff's Department Activity Report - April 2023
	Sheriff April 2023


	D. Correspondence not Requiring Board Action
	1. Letter from County Clerk Regarding Township Clerk'
	Co Clerk letter 5-19-23

	2. MCSWMA Director Austin Resignation
	Dir resignation 5-15-23

	3. MCSWMA Seasonal Hours Effective 12-1-23
	Seasonal Hours 12-1-23

	4. MCSWMA Holiday Hours 5-26-23
	2023 Holiday Schedule 5-26-23

	5. MCSWMA Landfill Permit 5-26-23
	Landfill Permit 5-26-23

	6. Peter White Public Library Board Draft Minutes fro
	2023-5-23 Board Minutes DRAFT


	E. April 2023 Financial Statements
	April 2023


	5. Approval of the Agenda
	6. Board Education/Privileged Comment
	A. Library Report
	B. MCSWMA 2023 Shareholder Meeting-Abbreviated
	2022 annual meeting 4-14-2023


	7. Community Linkage 
	8. Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development
	A. Schedule a Work Session with Attorney to Discuss I
	B. Consider Support for Fire Department EV Training
	Board Action Item

	C. Consider Contribution to Housing Intergovernmental
	Board Action Item
	TMA Proposal 5-9-23 abbreviated
	TMA Match Funding Sources

	D. Consider Early Payoff of Township Debt - North Par
	Board Action Item
	draft audit table
	grove st land payoff
	township hall parking lot payoff

	E. Consider Purchase of a 2023 Tahoe 4WD w/Police Pac
	Board Action Item
	Marquette County Tahoe price

	F. Consider Recommendation of Roads Committee for 202
	Board Action Item
	2023 road maintenance bids

	G. Consider Renewal of MTA Membership
	Board Action Item
	2023-2024 annual dues MTA

	H. Consider Installation of Solar Array
	Board Action Item
	30% Tax Credit Flyer
	Marquette Township -19.6kW ground-  Proposal
	Marquette Township -20.28kW Roof-  Proposal
	Ground Mount Marquette Township Payback Analysis
	Roof Marquette Township Payback Analysis


	9. Assurance of Organizational Performance
	A. Board - Committee Updates
	1. Roads Committee
	2. Planning Report
	3. Community Day Events Committee


	10. Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum)
	11. Meeting Wrap-up
	A. Announcements
	B. Manager’s Report
	C. Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any
	D. Items for Future Agenda
	E. Board Member Comment

	12. Adjournment

